
tJ NI'n:u N1\'1'101'1:;

General.Assembly
J<'OMTY·FO\IRTH SESSiON

OfJiciIJl Ruords

-
StJMMl\RY RECORD 01" THE 48th MEETING

Ch~~fm9.nf Mt. TUERK (Austria)

CONtENTS

SIXTH COEMI':l'El!:
48t.h meeting

held on
Friday, 1 December 1989

at 3 p.lTI.
New York

AGENDA iT~M 139: Ml':ASURES TO PREVENT !NTERNATIONAL TERRORI~M WHICH ENDANGERS OR
TAKES INNOC~NT HUMAN LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS AND STUDY OF THE
UNDERLYING CAUS~5 OF THllSE FOHMS OF TERRORISM ~D ACTS OF VIOLENCE WHICH LIE_IN
MISgRY, fRUSTRATION, GRI~V~NCE AND DESPAIR AN~ WHICH CAUSE SOME PEOPLE TO SACRIFICE
HUMAN LIVES, INCLUDING TUEl R OWN, IN AN ATTEMPT TU Ef'FECT RADICAL CHANGES
(QQ.n..tjl!\!J;~g )

(Cl) REPORT Or' THE SECRE'l.'ARY-GI::N~RAL (CQn.tJn1.~~.!~)

(b) CONVgNING, UNDEH THE AUSPICES OF TH~ UNI~ED NATIONS, OF AN INTERNATION~L

CONFEnENCE TO DEFINE TERRORISM AND TO DIFFERENTIATE IT FROM THE STRUGGLE
OF P~OP~ES FOR N~TIONAL LIBERATION (~Qn~tnM~g)

COMPLF.'l'ION OF' THf~ COMMIT'l'gE I S WORK

1hi' tt:nud., ,un:crt III \.l1rrt\ 111'11
l'llllerllnll\ \".>uld hr \ellllll.dc, th,' \1~nIlIUrc III a m,'II,l>c1 ,>llhc dck'I/'llIllll rlln,'crm'"

\1'1111/11 IIn/' K'nA ,,[tlll'II'II/' "/1'/lhlmlll"JlI" rIll' Chlt'J ,,'1111' Off" !Ill Rcr,,'d., "'hi Ill!! !;\'d,,,n. /('~'m I)(,~ 1~n_

~ llnllcod "'IIIIOn\ Phl/,I ,1I1{1 1Il\.",'rpnnlh-lI 111,1 ,,'01') 111 thl' flTl1ttl

89·-57534 22~4S (E)

Distr. GENERXt
AlC.6/44/SR.4B
6 December 1989

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

/ ...Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.48
English
Page 2

Th9 meeting was called to order at 3.35 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 139: MEASURES TO PREVENT INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM WHICH ENDANGERS OR
TAKES INNOCENT HUMAN LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS AND STUDY OF THE
UNDERLYING CAUSES OF THOSE FORMS OF TERRORISM AND ACTS OP' VIOLENCE WHICH LIE IN
MISERY, FRUSTRATION, GRIEVANCE AND DESPAIR AND WHICH CAUSE SOME PEOPLE TO SACRIFICE
HUMAN LIVES, INCLUDING THEIR OWN, IN AN ATTEMPT TO EFFECT RADICAL CHANGES
(continued)

(a) REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

(b) CONVENING, UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE UNITED NATIONS, OF AN INTERNATIONAL
CONFERENCE TO DEFINE TERRORISM AND TO DIFFERENTIATE IT FROM THE STRUGGLE OF
PEOPLES FOR NATIONAL LIBERATION (continued) (A/C.6/44/L.2, L.3, L.4 and L.22)

Draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.22

1. The CHAIRMAN, introducing draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.22, said that its
purpose was to voice strong condemnation of terrorist acts and express the
determination of the international communit¥ to prevent and eliminate them. It had
not been easy to work out the text, which was the result of extensive informal
consultations and the collective efforts of members of the Committee. Since it was
important that the international community should speak with one voice on such an
important matter as international terrorism, he commended draft resolution
A/C.6/44/L.22 for adoption without a vote.

2. If he heard no objection, he would take it that the sponsors of draft
resolutions A/C.6/44/L.2, L.3 and L.4 did not insist on action being taken on those
texts.

3. It was so decided.

4. Mr. KUFUOR (Ghana) said that his delegation had serious reservations about
draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.22, which it had only just seen. They concerned the
use of the words "and not justifiable" in paragraph 1 and "legitimately" in
paragraph 17. Those words were not acceptable.

5. Although his delegation reserved its position on those paragraphs, especially
paragraph 17, it would not oppose a consensus on the draft resolution

6. Draft resolution A/r..6/44/L.22 was adopted without a vote.

7. Mr. KOTEVSKI (Yugoslavia), speaking on behalf of the members of the Movement
of Non-Aligned Countries, said that they had proceeded all along from the
conviction that joint action by the whole international community was needed on
international terrorism. Their draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.4 had therefore been
designed to facilitate consensus on the subject. All countries involved in the
consultations on the alternative draft resolution just adopted had been unanimous

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.48
English
Page 3

that acts of interniltJoni-ll tt1l'l'::lr1:;m Wnl'fl c:rimin:'il l'md could not be justified. But
they WAre similarly un~nimou5 in the vi~w th~t nothinq could in any way prejudice
thA right of peoples who were forcJbly ~eprived of their right to
self-determination, freedom and indApAndAn~e, by colonial and racist regimes or
other forms of alien domination. to struggle for that right and to seek and receive
support. Their struggle could not and must not ther8fore be equated with
terrodsm. It Wi'\S the view of the non-aligned countries th8t the reference in
paragraph 17 of the text to "alien dominntion" includad foreign occupation. He was
convinced that the consensus reached on thE' d-:aft reFolutiCln would promot.e
international co··operation in combatinq international terrorism and eliminating its
underlying causes, as ~ell as efforts to formulate a generally acceptable
definition of it.

8. Mr.! ~GQ~AY (Israol) said that her delegation had joined the consensus because
draft resolution A/C.6/44/L.22 condemned all acts, methods and practices of
terrorism as not justifiRble for any reason whatRoever. However, it also regarded
paragraph 17 as unnecessary beca\lsA t.herE!' Wi'\S no jUl'ltification for any linkage or
relationship between terrorist acts and the right to self-determination. It also
had roservations about r.onvening an internAtional conference to define terrorism,
since what constituted terrorism was very clear to everyone and there was no point
in trying to blur t~e issue. Tho idea of legitimizing tarrorist acts under the
cover of a struggle for national liberation was misguided, and an international
conference to define tcrroril'lm would not produce any positive results.

9. Mr.!... ~..Q.sEN.S.T.QC.~ (Un! ted States of Ame rica) said that his delega\.ion was happy
to join in the consensus on the draft resolution, whose paragraph 1 had made the
condemnation of terrorism clearer by stating that terrorist acts were not
justifiable. His delegation had been unable to join in a consensus on the draft
resolution submitted on the same SUbject in 1987, precisely because it could have
been interpreted as meaning that so~e terrorist acts were justifiable. There was
general agreement that terrorism was never ju&tifiable, and if the justifiable use
of force was to bp. dealt with, it must ~e in terms that ruled out terrorism. In
that regard, paragraph 17 was an improvem~nt on the comparable paragraph in General
Assembly resolution 42/159. b~cause it qualifi9d the right of peoples under
colonial and racist r~gimes or other forms of alien domination to struggle for
sel f ·-det.ermination, freedom and independence. The word "legi t imately" indicated
that only non-terrorist means of ~lruggle could be used, and that the pursuit of
self-dettHmination cOllld never justify recourse to terrorism.

10. Mr.•. Q.~p.?oJmN!.KIR.~13 (Union of. Soviet Socialist Republics) said that his
delegation welcomen the consensus reached on the draft resolution, and especially
its unequivocal condemnation of terrorist ~cts as criminal and not justifiable.
The consensus was due largely to the flexibility and reaRonableness shown by many
delegations, to the diplomatic skills of the Chairman and to the general
improvement in t.he internotional situation. The result would be to stimulate
action against terrorism and enhance the reputation of the United Nations for
dealing with complex problems affecting the international community.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.6/44/SR.48
English
Page 4

COMPLETION OF THE COMMITTEE'S WORK

11. The CHAIRMAN, summing up the rebults of the Committee's work at the currentsession, singled out as its most significant achievements its adoption of the draftConvention against mercenaries. the draft resolution relating to internationalterrorism and the draft decision on the peaceful settlment of disputes. It wasalso worth noting that a record na~ber of draft resolutions had been adopted bygeneral agreernent, which was due largely to the more positive international climateand the growing readiness of representatives of Member States to enter intoinformal consultations to bridge their differences of opinion. That was one of themost positive features of multilateral diplomacy as practised every day in theUnited Nations. Looking to the future. he believed that the increasing importanceof international law in international relations would have a beneficial effect onthe work of the Committee in years to come and greatly enhance its role within theUnited Nations.

12. After an exchange of courtesies in which Mr. WISSEH (Liberia), Mr. GOERNER(German Democratic Republic). Mr. DROUSHIOTIS (Cyprus), Mr. Mil,TA.IRA (New Zealand)and Mr. ALVAREZ (Uruguay) spoke on behalf of their respective groups of States, theCHAIRMAN declared that the Committee had completed its work tor the forty-fourthsession.

The meeting rose at 4.30 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




